



U.S.NRC

UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

Protecting People and the Environment

Vendor Inspection Program Plan

Revision 15
October 2016

Prepared By: NRO Vendor Inspection Staff
Division of Construction Inspection and Operational Programs
Office of New Reactors
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

CONTENTS

1.0 Vendor Inspection Program Overview	1
2.0 Objectives of the Vendor Inspection Program	1
3.0 Organization	3
4.0 Scope of Activities	3
5.0 Center of Expertise	4
6.0 Vendor Identification and Selection Methodologies.....	4
7.0 Types of Inspection	4
8.0 Enforcement	6
9.0 Coordination Activities and Industry Interactions.....	7
10.0 Communication and Outreach.....	10
11.0 Performance Metrics	11
12.0 Knowledge Management and Training	11
13.0 Resource Management.....	13
14.0 Implementation Schedule and Assessment.....	15
Appendix A: Strategy for Vendor Identification	A-1
Appendix B: Strategy for Vendor Selection	B-1
Appendix C: Strategy for Enhanced Vendor Outreach and Communications.....	C-1
Appendix D: Strategy for Coordinating Vendor Inspections.....	D-1
Appendix E: Vendor Inspection Program Performance Metrics	E-1
Appendix F: Vendor Inspection Report Feedback Form.....	F-1

1.0 Vendor Inspection Program Overview

The vendor inspection program (VIP) verifies that reactor applicants and licensees are fulfilling their regulatory obligations with respect to providing effective oversight of the supply chain. It accomplishes this through a number of activities, including: performing limited scope targeted vendor inspections of vendors' quality assurance programs, establishing a strategy for vendor identification and selection which samples the effectiveness of the domestic and international supply chains for the current fleet and new reactor construction, and; ensuring vendor inspectors obtain necessary knowledge and skills to perform inspections. In addition, the VIP addresses interactions with nuclear consensus standards organizations, industry and external stakeholders, and international constituents.

The VIP includes objectives and associated performance metrics to demonstrate that overarching goals are being met. These performance metrics are assessed to ensure successful implementation and continuous improvement of the VIP.

The purpose of the VIP Plan is to establish an overall approach, including goals, priorities, performance metrics, and resource management strategies for VIP activities. Key parts of the plan include:

- The objectives of the VIP, including its overarching goals that provide a link to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) statutory mission of protecting public health and safety, promoting the common defense and security, and protecting the environment
- The organization, staffing, training, and qualification of the vendor inspection staff in the NRC's Office of New Reactors (NRO) necessary to perform effective oversight of vendors
- The needed infrastructure including inspection and regulatory guidance and tools such as information (e.g., quality assurance Web site), inspection planning and scheduling, and self-assessment tracking systems
- Communication and coordination activities with internal and external stakeholders

2.0 Objectives of the Vendor Inspection Program

The VIP establishes specific objectives derived from six overarching goals that provide a nexus to the NRC's statutory mission of protecting public health and safety, promoting the common defense and security, and protecting the environment. The VIP is communicated both internally within the NRC and externally with industry stakeholders to ensure full integration of the program. Performance metrics have been established for each VIP objective to demonstrate that the following overarching goals are met:

- (1) Objective - Decisions are based on factual information.
- (2) Risk-informed - Risk insights are considered along with other factors (such as engineering judgment) to better focus vendor and regulatory attention on issues commensurate with their importance to the NRC mission.
- (3) Understandable - The process and its results are clear and written in plain English.

- (4) Predictable - More than one individual can follow the same defined process and arrive at the same conclusion in a consistent manner (e.g., repeatable).
- (5) Open - NRO appropriately informs and involves stakeholders in the regulatory process.
- (6) Effective - NRO actions are of high quality, efficient, timely, and realistic, to enable the safe operation and construction of nuclear power plants.

The vendor inspection staff is responsible for implementing the VIP and ensuring that the objectives of the VIP are met. The objectives of the VIP are:

VIP O-1 Verify that applicants and licensees are fulfilling their regulatory obligations with respect to providing effective oversight of the supply chain for operating reactors and reactor design and construction through a strategic sample of vendor inspections.

The vendor inspection staff accomplishes this objective by performing vendor inspections that verify the effective implementation of the vendor's quality assurance program. The inspections focus on verifying that vendors supplying basic components in accordance with the requirements of Appendix B, "Quality Assurance Program Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants and Fuel Reprocessing Plants," to Title 10 of the *Code of Federal Regulations* (10 CFR) Part 50, "Domestic Licensing of Production and Utilization Facilities," and 10 CFR Part 21, "Reporting of Defects and Noncompliance," provide a product meeting the technical and quality requirements in the procurement documents. In addition, the inspections verify the adequate implementation of procurement and commercial-grade dedication programs as defined in Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and 10 CFR Part 21, as applicable.

VIP O-2 Effectively communicate with internal and external stakeholders.

The vendor inspection staff accomplishes this objective through confirmation of the following:

- Inspection nonconformances and/or violations provide sufficient detail to communicate whether the vendor is meeting commitments related to NRC-regulated activities and provide a direct link to the requirements that were not met.
- Inspection reports are written in plain language.
- Announcement letters, inspection plans, inspection reports, and acknowledgement letters are completed in a timely manner consistent with the VIP metrics.
- Inspection nonconformances and/or violations are rarely rescinded if contested.

VIP O-3 Perform timely and adequate allegation follow up and closure.

The vendor inspection staff accomplishes this objective by providing the necessary technical support to make sure that allegations are closed in a timely manner consistent with the NRC's metrics.

VIP O-4 Ensure that vendor inspectors have the necessary knowledge and skills to successfully implement the VIP.

The vendor inspection staff accomplishes this objective by verifying that vendor inspections are conducted by qualified inspectors, that vendor inspectors-in-training make acceptable progress in their required qualifications, and that qualified vendor inspectors maintain their proficiency. In addition, management provides appropriate oversight of on-going inspections and inspection reports.

The vendor inspection staff developed a set of performance metrics associated with each of the objectives of the VIP to assess program performance with respect to the goals listed above. Section 10.0 of this document describes these performance metrics.

3.0 Organization

Three NRO branches support the VIP. The vendor inspection staff conducts inspections related to requirements in Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and 10 CFR Part 21 at suppliers that provide design, fabrication, and engineering services (including commercial-grade dedication) for nuclear components. In addition, the vendor inspection staff provides technical support for regional inspections, special projects, programs, and policy activities. The vendor inspection staff coordinates inspection activities and, as necessary, requests additional support from other NRC offices, technical divisions, regions, branches or contractors.

4.0 Scope of Activities

The vendor inspection staff conducts vendor inspections to verify that quality assurance programs at vendor facilities are effectively implemented and comply with applicable regulatory requirements, including 10 CFR Part 21 and the licensee-imposed requirements of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50. Vendor inspections may also support the Commission determination that the acceptance criteria in a combined license are met in accordance with 10 CFR 52.99 and 10 CFR 52.103(g). Vendor inspections follow the procedures given in the table below, as applicable, and are governed by Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 2507, "Construction Inspection Program: Vendor Inspections."

Procedure	Title
IP 35034	Design Certification Testing Inspection
IP 36100	Inspection of 10 CFR Parts 21 and Programs for Reporting Defects and Noncompliance
IP 36100.01	Inspection of 10 CFR 50.55(e) Programs for Reporting Defects and Noncompliance During Construction
IP 37805	Engineering Design Verification Inspections

IP 43003	Reactive Inspection of Nuclear Vendors
IP 43002	Routine Inspections of Nuclear Vendors
IP 43004	Inspection of Commercial-Grade Dedication Programs
IP 65001	Inspections of Inspections, Tests, Analyses, and Acceptance Criteria (ITAAC) Related Work

5.0 Center of Expertise

The NRC performs routine and reactive vendor inspections and quality assurance (QA) implementation inspections for the commercial nuclear power industry including new and operating reactors via the Vendor Inspection Center of Expertise (COE). In addition, the Vendor Inspection COE reviews changes to QA programs pursuant to 50.54(a).

The Vendor Inspection COE, now located in NRO, combines the responsibilities of the two previous programs. The COE is responsible for performing reactive inspections in response to operating experience; reports of defects and noncompliance made in accordance with 10 CFR Part 21 or allegations; and conducting inspections to verify the effective implementation of vendor quality assurance programs in order to assure the quality of materials, equipment, and services supplied to the commercial nuclear power reactor industry.

6.0 Vendor Identification and Selection Methodology

The methodology for the identification and selection of vendors for inspection is considered an essential element of the VIP. Appendix A to this plan describes the strategy used to identify vendors supplying safety-related material, equipment, and services to the nuclear power industry. After the vendor inspection staff establishes a list of potential vendors to inspect, Appendix B to this plan defines the process by which those vendors are prioritized and scheduled for inspection.

7.0 Types of Inspection

Vendor inspections are classified into two broad categories: routine inspections and reactive inspections.

Routine Inspections

Routine inspections verify that vendors supplying basic components in accordance with the requirements in Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and 10 CFR Part 21 provide a product meeting the technical and quality requirements in the procurement documents, including industry codes, standards, and applicable regulatory requirements. Routine inspections focus on observing the vendor's activities during the design, fabrication, and testing of basic components. In addition, the inspection verifies that the vendor implements controls for reporting defects and noncompliance in accordance with 10 CFR Part 21 requirements. For vendors performing dedication of commercial-grade items, the inspections also verify the effectiveness of the commercial-grade dedication program. Furthermore, the vendor inspection staff performs engineering design verification inspections to verify that the translation of high-level design information and performance requirements into procedures, specifications, calculations,

drawings, and procurement and construction documents is consistent with the applicable regulatory requirements.

Reactive Inspections

Reactive inspections are conducted in response to allegations, previous inspection nonconformances and/or violations, reports submitted in accordance with 10 CFR Part 21 or 10 CFR 50.55(e), or other information indicating the possibility that vendors are not meeting regulatory requirements. Reactive inspections verify that vendors of basic components have developed and implemented adequate procedures and controls to evaluate and correct conditions adverse to quality. In response to allegations, the vendor inspection staff conducts reactive inspections to verify the validity of any declaration, statement, or assertion of impropriety or inadequacy associated with NRC-regulated activities involving a vendor-supplied product or service. During these inspections, the vendor inspection staff evaluates the effectiveness of the vendor's QA program and procedures, as it relates to the reported problem.

The vendor inspection staff also supports regional requests in response to events at licensee facilities. Inspections of vendors have been conducted in support of regional reactive inspections where the focus has been on the failure of safety-related systems, structures, or components.

When the vendor inspection staff receives information that questions a vendor's ability to provide quality components, the following criteria are used to determine the need to perform a reactive versus a routine inspection:

- Involved loss of a safety function at an operating reactor site where a vendor issue was identified as a root cause
- Involved a major deficiency in design or dedication involving potential generic safety implications
- Led to a significant issue that affected/could affect closure of inspections, tests, analyses and acceptance criteria (ITAAC)
- Involved counterfeit, fraudulent, or suspect items that caused or could have caused a failure of a safety system
- Involved a fabrication or construction deficiency involving potential generic implications
- Involved a major deficiency in the design, function, or traceability of a critical digital asset
- Involved repetitive and frequent failures of components provided by a specific vendor (i.e. as evident by regulatory notifications)
- Involved a reported defect that failed to provide an appropriate technical evaluation to address the scope of the identified concern

Routine and reactive inspections can be announced or unannounced. For announced inspections, the vendor or any member of the vendor organization is notified by the lead inspector or any member of the NRC staff that an inspection is to be conducted. The

announcement may be made by a telephone call followed by written communication informing any member of the vendor organization that an inspection may or will take place at a specific time or date. For unannounced inspections, the vendor or any member of the vendor organization is not notified by the inspector or any member of the NRC staff until the inspector arrives at the vendor's facility or at the site where the inspection is to be conducted.

8.0 Enforcement

The NRC's Enforcement Policy governs the processes and procedures for the initiation and review of nonconformances and/or violations of NRC requirements, and the NRC Enforcement Manual contains implementation guidance. The NRC's Office of Enforcement issues both documents. Potential violations identified through inspection activities are processed in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy. The NRC's Enforcement Policy is available under ADAMS at Accession No. ML093480037 or on the NRC's public Web site at: <http://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol.html>.

Vendors supplying basic components to the nuclear power industry are subject to the following regulations:

- 10 CFR Part 21
- 10 CFR 50.5, and 10 CFR 52.4, "Deliberate Misconduct"
- 10 CFR 50.7 and 10 CFR 52.5, "Employee Protection"

In addition, applicants and licensees contractually impose the following regulations, as applicable, on their vendors:

- Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50
- 10 CFR 50.55a, "Codes and Standards"
- 10 CFR 50.55(e)
- 10 CFR 73.54

A vendor that fails to comply with the above regulations is subject to the following enforcement actions:

- non-cited violations (NCVs)
- notices of violation (NOVs)
- notices of nonconformance (NONs)

The NRC issues NONs and NOVs to vendors for failures to meet the requirements of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 or 10 CFR Part 21, respectively. In addition, the NRC also issues NCVs to vendors.

Vendors' NONs and NOVs are annually assessed to identify industry weakness and are communicated through the vendor inspection program's strategy for enhanced vendor outreach and communications. The target audience for this strategy includes licensees, license or design certification applicants, and vendors. The strategy also includes workshops on vendor oversight conducted every two years, which are widely attended and generate significant dialogue with the vendor community about regulatory issues.

An NCV is a nonrecurring, non-willful, Severity Level IV violation dispositioned under the traditional enforcement process that is not subject to formal enforcement action if the vendor places the violation in a corrective action program to address recurrence and restores compliance within a reasonable period of time. Inspectors document NCVs in the inspection report.

An NOV is the official notification of a failure to meet the NRC's regulatory requirements while an NON is the official notification to a vendor of a failure to meet contract requirements related to NRC activities (e.g., Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50) where the NRC has not placed requirements directly on the vendor.

9.0 Coordination Activities and Industry Interactions

The vendor inspection staff communicates both internally within the NRC and externally with industry stakeholders as described below.

Communication within the NRC on Vendor Inspection Activities

The vendor inspection staff interacts with the following NRO and NRR divisions to ensure that adequate technical expertise is provided during vendor inspections as necessary:

- Division of Engineering, Infrastructure, and Advanced Reactors (NRO)
- Division of Safety Systems and Risk Assessment (NRO)
- Division of Site Safety and Environmental Analysis (NRO)
- Division of Engineering (NRR)

Technical branches within these NRO and NRR divisions provide technical expertise in civil, mechanical, electrical, instrumentation and control, geotechnical, and chemical and materials engineering for all structures, systems and components (SSCs) for new and operating nuclear power reactors manufactured and procured through licensee engineering procurement contracts. These technical experts participate in vendor inspections with qualified vendor inspectors to ensure that the quality of safety-related SSCs is such that there is reasonable assurance that the SSCs will perform their intended safety function when installed in nuclear power plants.

The vendor inspection staff also interacts with the Office of Enforcement (OE) on issues associated with allegations and with the NRC's Region II staff to coordinate the agency's resources necessary to support inspections of targeted and non-targeted inspections, testing, analyses, and acceptance criteria (ITAAC)-related activities at vendors manufacturing safety-related components and modular assemblies for new reactor construction. Coordination includes effectively communicating any nonconformances and/or violations identified at the vendor facility. Inspection samples of ITAAC-related activities, as well as any relevant nonconformances and/or violations, are documented in the inspection reports. Appendix D of this plan provides the strategy used by the vendor inspection staff for coordinating vendor inspections with the appropriate Region II staff.

In addition, as part of NRO's efforts to enhance communications between the Vendor Inspection COE and NRR, when potential nonconformances and/or violations at vendor inspections affect an operating reactor(s), the vendor inspection staff will include the applicable NRR Project Managers on the inspection report distribution.

Furthermore, the vendor inspection staff participates in activities associated with the following organizations:

- American Nuclear Society (ANS)
- American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
- Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE)

Communication and Engagement with Stakeholders on Vendor Inspection Activities

The vendor inspection staff interacts with the following external organizations:

- Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI)
- International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC)
- Multinational Design Evaluation Programme (MDEP)
- Nuclear Energy Institute (NEI)
- Nuclear Procurement Issues Committee (NUPIC)

Electric Power Research Institute - Joint Utility Task Group

The vendor inspection staff interacts with EPRI by attending the EPRI-Joint Utility Task Group (JUTG) procurement forum. During these meetings, the vendor inspection staff makes a presentation on NRC perspectives on vendor performance issues. The EPRI JUTG provides a forum for utility procurement personnel to candidly exchange information and to work together to address common industry issues related to the procurement of materials and services. The vendor inspection staff is also working with the EPRI JUTG on guidance documents related to commercial-grade dedication in support of the Part 21 guidance development effort.

International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation

By a letter dated [August 28, 2014](#), NEI submitted Revision 1 of [NEI 14-05](#), "Guidelines for the Use of Accreditation in Lieu of Commercial Grade Surveys for Procurement of Laboratory Calibration and Test Services," to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) for NRC staff review and endorsement. NEI 14-05 provides an approach for licensees and suppliers of basic components to use laboratory accreditation by Accreditation Bodies (ABs) that are signatories to the International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC) Mutual Recognition Arrangement (MRA) (hereafter referred to as the ILAC accreditation process) in lieu of performing commercial-grade surveys for procurement of calibration and testing services performed by domestic and international laboratories accredited by signatories to the ILAC MRA.

NRC's endorsement of NEI 14-05, Revision 1 (ADAMS Accession No. ML14322A535), expands the NRC's acceptance of the ILAC accreditation process first documented in a safety evaluation on an [Arizona Public Service Company request](#). NRC's earlier acceptance was limited to laboratory calibration services accredited by specific U.S. ABs. Although the NRC has endorsed NEI 14-05, Revision 1, licensees and suppliers of basic components use of the ILAC accreditation process in lieu of performing a commercial-grade survey represents a reduction in commitment to the previously accepted QA program. As such, once the NRC approves the QA program change for a licensee in accordance with 10 CFR 50.54(a)(4), other licensees may adopt the QA alternative of using the ILAC accreditation process in lieu of performing a commercial-grade survey provided that the bases of the NRC approval are applicable to the licensee's facility pursuant to the requirements of 10 CFR 50.54(a)(3)(ii). The staff has

approved the Calloway licensing amendment to incorporate this change as document in a letter dated [April 1, 2016](#).

Multinational Design Evaluation Programme

MDEP is a multinational initiative to develop innovative approaches to leverage the resources and knowledge of mature, experienced national regulatory authorities tasked with the regulatory review of new reactor plant designs. The Vendor Inspection Cooperation Working Group (VICWG) is an issue-specific working group established under the MDEP organization. The goal of the VICWG is to identify areas of commonality and differences among the regulatory practices of member countries in the area of vendor inspection programs.

The vendor inspection staff participates in vendor inspections led by foreign regulatory authorities to provide additional insights relative to the effectiveness of licensee (both foreign and domestic) oversight of these international vendors.

Nuclear Energy Institute

The vendor inspection staff occasionally interfaces with NEI to discuss mutual items of interest (i.e, commercial-grade dedication, Part 21 implementation, procurement, software dedication, and vendor oversight). These interactions ensure that the agency and industry concerns are both addressed during the development of vendor and supplier guidance documents. In addition, the staff has endorsed several NEI documents related to quality and vendor oversight which can be found on the NRC QA website.

Nuclear Procurement Issues Committee

The vendor inspection staff routinely observes NUPIC joint utility audits in order to verify the effectiveness of the NUPIC audit. The NRC inspection team uses Inspection Procedure (IP) 43005, "NRC Oversight of Third Party Organizations Implementing Quality Assurance Requirements," during NUPIC observation activities. Participation in NUPIC activities also enhances the MDEP, as the vendor inspection staff frequently invites members of the international regulatory community to observe the NRC's oversight of the NUPIC audit process.

The typical NUPIC audit scope is to determine the overall acceptability and verify the effective implementation of a vendor's QA requirements through use of the NUPIC audit checklist, which is structured in accordance with the requirements of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, ASME NQA-1, and 10 CFR Part 21. While observing the audit, NRC inspectors sample and review audit checklist evaluation areas, observe NUPIC's review of the implementation of the vendor's QA program, and evaluate the adequacy of NUPIC's process for documenting audit findings in the associated trip report. The vendor inspection staff continuously interacts with NUPIC auditors during the NUPIC audit observation. If the vendor inspection staff observes any potential violations of regulations during the audit and NUPIC auditors fail to act on the issue, the vendor inspection staff will bring the issue to the attention of the NUPIC utility lead auditor for resolution. The results of the NUPIC observation are documented in a publicly available trip report.

The vendor inspection staff observes approximately two NUPIC audits a year. The vendor inspection staff recently evaluated the NRC's oversight of NUPIC to make sure the interactions meet current regulatory standards and the process is appropriately holding licensees

accountable for their oversight of vendors. The results from that evaluation concluded that staff current interactions with NUPIC (1) are effectively communicating regulatory concerns/initiatives and industry issues between organizations and has served as a catalyst for several NUPIC process improvements, and (2) provide valuable insights into vendor performance issues used as a key parameter in the NRC's criteria for selecting vendors for inspection. However, in order to improve the NRC's oversight of the NUPIC audits, the vendor inspection staff will supplement the current biannual observations of NUPIC audits with observations of limited scope audits (LSAs). An LSA is a supplemental audit scheduled outside the normal NUPIC audit frequency focused at specific performance deficiencies.

Three times per year, the vendor inspection staff participates in NUPIC meetings during which the vendor inspection staff provides an update on ongoing NRC vendor inspection activities and shares the results of recent NRO NUPIC audit observations. The NRC plans to continue its oversight of the NUPIC process in order to further enhance the NUPIC joint utility audit program and increase the alignment between NUPIC and the agency regarding the conduct of vendor inspections.

10.0 Communication and Outreach

Licensees and applicants are ultimately responsible for the safety of the facilities licensed by the NRC. As such, they must ensure that their vendors understand and effectively implement the applicable regulations. The vendor inspection staff's efforts to improve communication and outreach with these stakeholders enhances the NRC's commitment to openness, efficiency, and clarity. The vendor inspection staff developed the Strategy for Enhanced Vendor Outreach and Communications (see Appendix C to this plan). The purpose of this strategy is to establish and communicate the NRC's plan to enhance outreach and communications with vendors supplying materials, equipment and services for both operating and new reactors. The vendor inspection staff will update this strategy as necessary as part of the annual VIP self-assessment process.

Additionally, in order to better facilitate communication and outreach activities with stakeholders, the NRC established the following goals for announcement letters, inspection plans, and acknowledgment letters:

- (1) Notification of Inspection: 30 calendar days before the start of the inspection unless the inspection is unannounced. In cases where the need for the inspection arises (i.e., allegation, testing schedule, and/or specific vendor activity) less than 35 days before the inspection start date, issue Announcement Letter within 5 calendar days of being notified of the need for the inspection. In cases where the need for the inspection arises less than 5 calendar days, issue Announcement Letter prior to inspection.
- (2) Inspection Plans: 7 calendar days before the start of the inspection. In cases where the need for the inspection arises (i.e., allegation, testing schedule, and/or specific vendor activity) less than 7 calendar days before the inspection start date, issue Inspection Plan prior to the inspection.
- (3) Inspection Reports: 45 calendar days after the exit meeting, extended until the next business day if the 45 days end on a weekend or Holiday.
- (4) Acknowledgement Letters: 30 calendar days after the last communication sent by the vendor.

Additional Methods of Communication Regarding Vendor Issues

When issues are identified regarding materials or services supplied by a vendor to a specific licensee, the vendor inspection staff should consider adding the appropriate NRR Project Manager, Resident Inspectors, and/or licensee contacts to the inspection report distribution list. Additionally, the vendor inspection staff may notify licensees about specific vendor-related issues via direct written correspondence or generic communications. If significant weaknesses in oversight are observed, the NRC staff may choose to engage directly with the lead licensee on a case by case basis.

11.0 Performance Metrics

The vendor inspection staff uses performance metrics to evaluate the success of the VIP. These metrics are incorporated into DCIP's Operating Plan. Measurement of these metrics allows the vendor inspection staff to do the following:

- Identify performance issues and determine their significance
- Adjust resources to focus on significant performance issues
- Take necessary regulatory actions for significant performance issues
- Effectively communicate inspection results to stakeholders
- Make program improvements based on stakeholder feedback and lessons learned

Appendix D provides a detailed description of the performance metrics associated with the goals described in Section 2.0 of this plan. Metrics of a more general nature are also monitored and analyzed, primarily using stakeholder feedback, to gauge the overall effectiveness of the VIP.

Each metric in Appendix D includes its definition, the criteria to determine whether it is met, and a cross-reference to the VIP goals the metric is intended to support. Stakeholder surveys to collect stakeholder feedback are issued based on the schedule of activities during which feedback is requested, such as vendor workshops and inspection reports (see Appendix E to this document).

12.0 Knowledge Management & Training

Knowledge Management

Knowledge management and vendor inspector training are critical for effectiveness of the VIP. The NRC's knowledge management process includes several training documents (that are defined by community of practice) and SharePoint sites dedicated to vendor inspector qualification and continuing training.

To support the continuing development of the VIP, the vendor inspection staff also maintains a SharePoint site to share information on the various activities performed in the VIP, including 10 CFR Part 21 issues, the issues of other organizations (e.g., NUPIC, ASME), and unique or complex inspection findings. The vendor inspection staff uses these knowledge management systems to ensure the availability of information related to vendor inspections. Branch chiefs and senior staff actively participate in the mentoring of new staff in support of the vendor inspection and technical reviewer qualification programs.

Vendor Inspector Training and Qualification Activities

As a part of the overall VIP, active involvement by vendor inspection staff members at all experience levels is critical. Specifically, training and qualification monitoring by senior staff, combined with a cohesive system of knowledge transfer from experienced vendor inspection staff to trainees, ensures a continual cadre of knowledgeable, well-trained, and fully qualified vendor inspectors. Appendix C-8, "Vendor Inspector Technical Proficiency Training and Qualification Journal," of NRC Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 1245, "Qualification Program for the Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation Programs," dated December 19, 2012, contains the training and qualification requirements for NRO vendor inspection staff performing inspection activities.

Competency Areas

Vendor inspector qualification requires the completion of numerous activities. Each activity is designed for the inspector to learn information or a skill that will be important to performing as a vendor inspector. Completion of all qualification training and activities (including those for basic-level general proficiency, and technical proficiency-level) demonstrates that an individual possesses the knowledge necessary to become a successful vendor inspector. Full vendor inspector qualification indicates that the individual has completed all required training and qualification activities. Vendor inspector qualification allows an individual to independently perform the full scope of inspection-related activities with routine oversight and supervision.

In general, nonqualified inspectors will receive specific tasks to accomplish during these activities, but they will have an experienced inspector assigned as a mentor to provide guidance on the necessary tasks as well as to assist with any questions or concerns related to the activity. In this manner, junior inspectors will gain knowledge from senior staff, meaningfully participate in the VIP, and fulfill their on-the-job training requirements.

Methods for Completing Qualification

In accordance with IMC 1245, previous work experience and training may be accepted as evidence that an individual already possesses the required knowledge or skills achieved by completing parts of the vendor inspection qualification program. The Director of the Division of Construction Inspection and Operational Programs has the authority to accept previous experience and training as an alternate method for meeting the requirements. Justification for accepting previous experience and training to meet program requirements must be determined by the Branch Chief and documented in the individual's qualification journal. In accordance with IMC 1245, an individual who was previously qualified as an NRC inspector must complete the additional specific training and qualification requirements for vendor inspection specified in Appendix C-8 to IMC 1245. Inspectors need not repeat previous equivalent training requirements, and the qualification journal will indicate credit for previous similar training. A fully qualified inspector is not required to complete another qualification board for vendor inspector qualification.

The Branch Chiefs have the flexibility to determine when an employee is ready for an oral qualification board. For example, this determination can be done by conducting a mock oral qualification examination or by an interview. The Branch Chiefs will confirm that all qualification requirements have been met and will convene a qualification board to examine the employee's regulatory knowledge, skills, and ability to perform the functions independently. If an employee

passes a board and then completes a different position-specific qualification, that employee shall only be tested on the requirements of the subsequent position-specific qualification program.

Successfully completing a qualification board will ensure that the inspector understands the role of the agency, the inspection program, and the inspector's responsibilities. Final vendor inspector qualification is provided through certification by the NRO Office Director.

Post-qualification Activities

Qualified vendor inspectors maintain their qualification as required in Appendix D-1 to IMC 1245. Appendix D-1 defines the requirements for post-qualification and refresher training for qualified vendor inspectors.

Post-qualification training is defined as the training received after qualification to supplement or enhance the professional development of the vendor inspection staff. All qualified vendor inspectors are required to participate in ongoing post-qualification training to maintain and enhance their knowledge and skills. This training includes elements of both continuing and refresher training as defined in IMC 1245-03. Continuing training includes Vendor Inspector group training conducted at least quarterly that concentrates on core competencies and lessons learned. The Branch Chiefs will review post-qualification accomplishments annually and set goals for the following year to ensure that the vendor inspection staff meets the intent of IMC 1245-06 for post-qualification training.

The vendor inspector's Branch Chief and other office management will evaluate the need for additional continuing and refresher training necessary to meet the requirements of Appendix D-1 to IMC 1245, as necessary. Additionally, Branch Chiefs will monitor inspector performance through periodic observations of inspections.

13.0 Resource Management

As a result of the development of the enhanced VIP in 2007, and within the framework of IMC 2507, "Construction Inspection Program: Vendor Inspection Program," dated October 3, 2007, the vendor inspection staff conducts vendor inspections to a level commensurate with the number of routine and reactive inspections specified in the NRO operating plan on a yearly basis. The overall number of vendor inspections contained in the operating plan is derived from SECY 09-0182, "Legal Constraints of Relying on Vendor Inspection Results of Foreign Regulators and the Need for Additional Resources to Achieve the Appropriate Number of NRC Vendor Inspections," dated December 14, 2009, and its associated staff requirements memorandum (SRM) (M090603), which represent the vendor inspection staff's attempt to forecast and plan for the appropriate staffing levels needed for vendor inspections, as directed by the Commission. The VIP continues to use the NRO operating plan, in conjunction with any additional SRMs, or other form of Commission or NRO management direction, to plan and manage resources for the conduct of vendor inspection activities.

In terms of resource management, the objective of the VIP is to ensure that the NRC has an adequate number of knowledgeable, well-trained, and qualified vendor inspectors to meet the forecasted workload of vendor inspections. The vendor inspection staff supports this objective by:

- providing timely training and qualification for vendor inspectors

- periodically looking ahead to anticipate the upcoming workload in terms of planned and potential unplanned or reactive inspections
- routinely assessing policy and key technical issues that may have an impact on the VIP
- establishing relationships between the vendor inspection staff and various outside organizations (e.g., NUPIC, ASME, NEI) such that routine interactions can be undertaken as efficiently as possible with maximum results
- ensuring that the composition of the vendor inspection team represents the best combination of senior vendor inspectors, technical experts, and vendor inspectors in training available, given the nature of the vendor to be inspected, including the leverage of contract resources and technical expertise from other divisions as necessary.

In addition, the vendor inspection staff gains insights from inspections performed by peer regulators (e.g., MDEP) and industry auditors (e.g., NUPIC) to help inform the prioritization of vendor inspection resources. These insights are another input into the selection process for vendor inspections which also considers other items, including but not limited to the safety significance of the component or service, operational and construction experience (domestic and foreign), construction inspection program insights, and licensee and applicant procurement plans.

NRO currently makes the following resource assumptions about vendor inspection activities in order to support appropriate resource loading for the VIP:

- assumptions for typical vendor inspections:
 - 200 hours for the team leader
 - 120 hours per team member
 - one team leader and three team members for each inspection
 - 560 hours total per inspection
- assumptions for typical engineering design verification inspections:
 - 350 hours for the team leader
 - 275 hours per team member
 - 2 week inspection
 - each inspection is made up of one team leader and five to eight members for each inspection
 - 2,000 hours total per inspection

For the majority of the inspection procedures executed by the vendor inspection branches, the resources related to direct inspection effort for each team member are estimated to be between 40 and 200 hours, depending on the complexity of the activity being inspected and the scope of the inspection.

The vendor inspection staff assembles inspection teams based on the estimated complexity and associated level of effort for each inspection, the knowledge level and current workload of each member of the inspection team, the need for technical expertise from contract or technical division sources, or both, the usefulness of the inspection as a training activity for junior

inspectors, and the potential burden placed upon the vendor from having a larger inspection team. By taking all of these factors into consideration, the vendor inspection branches are able to assemble the most effective teams available, while also providing for training opportunities and continued learning.

The vendor inspection staff's workload is periodically assessed to ensure that the appropriate level of resource loading is being applied to each vendor inspector, commensurate with his or her experience level, special interests, unique qualifications, and other factors. This ensures that vendor inspection resources are used as efficiently and effectively as possible.

14.0 Implementation Schedule and Assessment

As described in referenced sections of the VIP Plan, the vendor inspection staff performed the following actions to implement the VIP:

Goal	Action	VIP Plan Section
June 2011 (completed)	Improved the accessibility of the portions of the NRC's public Web site that are relevant to vendor oversight	Appendix C
August 2011 (completed)	Created a page on the public Web site that categorizes nonconformances and violations from NRC vendor inspection reports	Appendix C
October 2011 (completed)	Created a frequently asked questions (FAQ) page on the public Web site that includes questions received at vendor conferences and other NRC outreach meetings	Appendix C
November 2012 (completed)	Reviewed vendor selection pilot strategy to assess whether changes need to made to the attributes or weighting factors. Assessed the need to revise IMC 2507 and IMC 2700 to reflect any changes.	Appendix B

As described in referenced sections of the VIP Plan, the vendor inspection staff performs the following ongoing actions:

Frequency	Action	VIP Plan Section
Ongoing	Manage an internal database to store vendor information and to facilitate vendor communication and selection	Appendix A
Ongoing	Maintain a list of vendors	Appendices A & C
Quarterly	Review vendor selection data and update, as necessary	Appendix B
Annually	VIP Self-Assessment	All
Annually	Provide an electronic newsletter to be sent to interested vendors	Appendix C
Biennially	Establish workshops on vendor oversight	Appendix C
Triennially	Assess the need to issue a RIS to NRC applicants and licensees	Appendix A

DISTRIBUTION

NRO DCIP

ADAMS Accession No.: Concurred via email * NRC-001

OFFICE	NRO/DCIP/QVIB-3	NRO/DCIP/QVIB-2	NRO/DCIP/QVIB-3
NAME	TSakadales *	YDiaz-Castillo *	KKavanagh *
DATE	10/18/2016	10/18/2016	10/18/2016
OFFICE	NRO/DCIP/QVIB-2	NRO/DCIP/QVIB-1	
NAME	RMcIntyre	TJackson	
DATE	10/18/2016	10/18/2016	

OFFICIAL RECORD COPY

APPENDIX A

STRATEGY FOR VENDOR IDENTIFICATION

PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to establish and communicate the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC's) strategy for identifying vendors of safety-related parts and services for new and operating nuclear power plants. Application of the strategy will result in a listing of vendors that will enable the NRC to identify and plan its inspection and outreach activities.

BACKGROUND

Licensees and applicants are responsible for the safety of facilities licensed by the NRC. As such, they are responsible for ensuring that their vendors meet applicable regulations and requirements (both technical and quality) in purchase documents. In order to ensure that licensees are meeting the regulatory requirements in this area, the NRC inspects vendors to evaluate their conformance with technical and quality requirements. The NRC also performs direct oversight of licensees by observing Nuclear Procurement Issues Committee (NUPIC) audits.

To ensure the efficient and effective use of NRC resources, the NRC has developed a methodology to select vendors for inspection (see Appendix B to the Vendor Inspection Program (VIP) Plan; ADAMS Accession No. ML112730279). Further, the NRC has also developed a strategy to enhance outreach and communications with vendors (see Appendix C to the VIP Plan; ADAMS Accession No. ML110871799). This vendor identification strategy will support those efforts.

VENDOR IDENTIFICATION STRATEGY

Currently, the NRC obtains information about vendors from the following sources:

- reports under Title 10 of the *Code of Federal Regulations* (10 CFR) 21.21, "Notification of Failure to Comply or Existence of a Defect and Its Evaluation" 10 CFR 50.72, "Immediate Notification Requirements for Operating Nuclear Power Reactors"; and 10 CFR 50.73 reports, "Licensee Event Report System"
- interaction with industry and standards organizations such as NUPIC, the Nuclear Industry Assessment Committee, and the American Society of Mechanical Engineers
- formal and informal communication with licensees, applicants, and engineering, procurement, and construction (EPC) contractors
- allegations
- approved supplier lists of licensees and vendors

The NRC has completed the plans to take the following actions to identify and track vendors of safety-related items and services:

Established a page on the NRC public Web site that allows vendors under an Appendix B, "Quality Assurance Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants and Fuel Reprocessing Plants," to 10 CFR Part 50, "Domestic Licensing of Production and Utilization Facilities," to voluntarily provide information to the NRC.

- The NRC encourages registration by alerting registrants to new operating experience summaries, meeting and conference notifications, and other communications as part of the strategy to enhance vendor outreach and communications (see Appendix C; ADAMS Accession No. ML110871799).
 - The NRC promotes registration at regularly conferences attended by vendors.
- Manages an internal database to store vendor information and facilitate vendor communication and selection.
 - The vendor inspection staff populates the database from the above mentioned resource.
 - The database contains the following information for each vendor (this list may be expanded to support the vendor selection methodology):
 - name
 - address
 - telephone number
 - point of contact (e.g., quality assurance manager) and e-mail address
 - scope of supply (e.g., Class I piping, electric motors)
 - comments

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

The vendor inspection staff tracks the effectiveness of its vendor identification and outreach activities by considering the usefulness of the information gathered. The vendor inspection staff will consider the strategy's effect on inspection planning and vendor outreach and revisit and revise this strategy as necessary. This strategy is a living document and as such the vendor inspection staff will update and modify it to suit the changing needs of the NRC and at a minimum, it will be reviewed on an annual basis.

APPENDIX B

STRATEGY FOR VENDOR SELECTION

PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to describe the strategy that the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) uses to help prioritize vendors for NRC inspection. This strategy is applicable to vendors that are currently supplying safety-related material, equipment, and services to the U.S. commercial nuclear power industry. The strategy is a program tool and provides one input into the overall vendor inspection selection process. The NRC will consider the need to perform reactive vendor outside the scope of this strategy.

BACKGROUND

Currently, Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 2507, "Construction Inspection Program: Vendor Inspections," contain general guidance on selecting vendors that are supplying safety-related material, equipment, and services for NRC inspection. The strategy contained in this document expands upon the guidance in the IMCs and helps to ensure the most efficient and effective use of NRC resources allocated for vendor inspection.

VENDOR SELECTION STRATEGY

As described in the accompanying strategy for vendor identification (see Appendix A to the Vendor Inspection Program Plan), the NRC will periodically solicit information from the nuclear industry on vendors that are currently supplying safety-related material, equipment and, services. The vendor inspection staff expects this process mostly to identify primary vendors (e.g., vendors that supply directly to NRC licensees). The staff anticipates that the majority of vendor inspections will focus on these primary vendors. As part of this strategy, NRC vendor inspectors will also collect information on key sub-vendors during inspections at primary vendors and through other interactions with the nuclear industry.

This prioritization strategy assesses each known vendor currently supplying safety-related material, equipment, and services to the domestic nuclear power industry by using a set of predetermined attributes. Information on primary and sub-vendors are tabulated in a Vendor Inspection Scoring Matrix as the information becomes available. The staff evaluates each vendor against each attribute and sums the resulting scores to generate a final score for that particular vendor.

Points are assigned to a vendor for having attributes that are associated with a perceived increased potential for failure of the material, equipment or services supplied by that vendor. Points are also assigned based on the perceived consequences of such failures. The point values are based upon the relative importance of each attribute. Vendors that receive higher overall numerical scores will receive increased consideration for an NRC vendor inspection. Although the selection of vendors for inspection is primarily based on this scoring system, the vendor inspection management staff includes other considerations in selecting the vendors to be inspected, including but not limited to safety culture issues, susceptibility to counterfeiting or cybersecurity issues, targeted reviews of ITAAC, and insights from Probabilistic Risk Assessments to the extent practicable.

The staff documents the results from the quarterly data review in a Vendor Inspection Master Schedule. Once the vendor data are obtained and the scores are calculated, the staff use the prioritized list of vendors as an input to select vendors for inspection. The staff reviews vendor data quarterly and updates, as necessary. It is important to note that certain inspection activities, such as inspections resulting from allegations, are considered independently of the vendor selection methodology. Please refer to “Reactive Inspections,” under Section 7.0, “Types of Inspections,” for additional information regarding the decision to perform vendor inspection independent of this prioritization scheme. The vendor staff use the following attributes to prioritize vendors in the scoring matrix:

Attribute: Prior NRC inspection experience: Attribute Score:

Inspection within last 3 years	0
No inspection	3

Attribute: Inspection debrief (or findings review panel) results: Attribute Score:

Multiple findings in one area	1
Multiple minor issues	1
Safety culture issues	1
Part 21 process issues	1
Multiple findings in areas inspected	1
Repetitive findings from previous inspection	1
Corrective action program breakdown	1

Attribute: Nuclear Procurement Issues Committee (NUPIC) results: Attribute Score:

No Limited Scope Audit (LSA) or Significant Issues Notification (SIN) issued by NUPIC within last 3 years	0
LSA <u>OR</u> SIN issued by NUPIC, within the last 3 years	2

Attribute: Industry experience with product or service: Attribute Score:

No problems in the last 3 years	0
1-2 problems in the last 3 years	1
3 or more problems in the last 3 years	3

Attribute: Reliability of vendor’s Part 21 program to evaluate/report: Attribute Score:

No Part 21 NOV in the past 3 years	0
Received Part 21 NOV in the past 3 years	3

Attribute: New or advanced design: Attribute Score:

Design or components have been in operating plants with operating experience	0
New design or component that has little to no operating experience	3

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

The vendor inspection staff continues to evaluate this strategy to assess whether changes need to be made to the attributes or scoring values. This strategy was updated in July 2016.

APPENDIX C

STRATEGY FOR ENHANCED VENDOR OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS

PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to establish and communicate the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC's) strategy to enhance outreach and communications with vendors supplying safety-related parts and services.

AUDIENCE

The target audience for this strategy includes licensees, license or design certification applicants, and vendors. Licensees and applicants are ultimately responsible for the safety of the facilities licensed by the NRC. As such, they must ensure that their vendors understand and implement applicable regulations. The vendor inspection staff's efforts to improve outreach and communications with these stakeholders serves to enhance the NRC's commitment to openness, efficiency, and clarity.

BACKGROUND

This strategy lists key areas of improvement that enhance current vendor inspection staff efforts in communication and outreach and identifies key trending data to be collected to measure the effectiveness of these enhancements. The preparation of a formal plan also provided the staff an opportunity for more strategic focus and coordination.

CURRENT COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH TOOLS

The NRC currently uses the following communications and outreach tools:

- Public Web Site: The vendor inspection public Web site (<http://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/oversight/quality-assurance.html>) gives vendors a venue to obtain useful information on many topics, including the following:
 - key regulations, such as Appendix B, "Quality Assurance Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants and Fuel Reprocessing Plants," to the Title 10 of the *Code of Federal Regulations* (10 CFR) Part 50, "Domestic Licensing of Production and Utilization Facilities," and 10 CFR Part 21, "Reporting of Defects and Noncompliance"
 - inspection procedures
 - inspection reports
 - information on commercial-grade dedication
 - presentations from past NRC workshops
 - NRC presentations at conferences attended by the NRC
- Workshops on Vendor Oversight: The NRC previously hosted workshops on vendor oversight for new reactors. The workshops were successful and excellent examples of NRC outreach. The workshops were widely attended and generated significant dialogue with the vendor community about regulatory issues. Feedback through meeting comment forms was positive and stakeholders have requested additional workshops.

- Participation in Industry Conferences and Meetings: The staff has participated in related industry conferences and meetings such as the following:
 - Nuclear Procurement Issues Committee meetings
 - the NRC's Regulatory Information Conference
 - Electric Power Research Institute Joint Utility Task Group meetings
 - International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation process activities
 - Vendor Inspection Cooperation Working Group meetings, under the auspices of the Multinational Design Evaluation Program and the Nuclear Energy Agency

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

The NRC recently made the following key improvements in outreach and communications:

- Improved the accessibility of the portions of the NRC's public Web site that are relevant to vendor oversight.
 - The NRC created a link within the quick link box on the pages for new reactors and operating reactors.
- Created a page on the public Web site that categorizes nonconformances and violations from NRC vendor inspection reports.
 - The NRC added a page with the 18 criteria from Appendix B to 10 CFR 50 and 10 CFR 21 so that vendors can select one of the criteria or 10 CFR Part 21 requirements and have all applicable inspection reports with nonconformances and violations in those areas listed.
- Created a frequently asked questions (FAQ) page on the public Web site that includes questions received at vendor conferences and other NRC outreach meetings.
 - The FAQ provides a quick source of information and serves as a knowledge management tool. The current vendor page has slides and summaries for past NRC conferences. The vendor inspection staff makes every effort to publish questions and answers as soon as they have been adequately vetted.
- Provide an annual electronic newsletter for vendors.
 - The newsletter includes recent nonconformances and/or violations, potential rulemakings, upcoming conferences, operating experience and other useful information. Stakeholders can sign up for the newsletter through the NRC's Web site.
- Continue biennial workshops on vendor oversight.
 - The NRC will continue to host a workshop every 2 years as one key forum for communication and outreach with vendors. The vendor inspection staff will continue to use comment cards to solicit feedback and seek recommendations for improving future workshops.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

The vendor inspection staff will track the improved efficiency and effectiveness of its outreach and communications activities by assessing the usefulness of the information shared. Feedback forms from vendor workshops will include specific questions to obtain feedback on the usefulness of information shared. The vendor inspection staff will use the feedback to enhance future workshops.

To evaluate stakeholder interest and participation, the vendor inspection staff will use the number of attendees at the conferences to measure the level of interest and success of the conference. The vendor inspection staff will use feedback forms from vendor workshops to gauge stakeholder interest.

The vendor inspection staff will revisit and revise this strategy as necessary, and at a minimum, it will be reviewed on an annual basis. This strategy is a living document, and the staff will update and modify it to suit the changing needs of the NRC.

STRATEGY QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Q. How can I access the NRC's Web page for quality assurance and vendor oversight?

A. You can access the vendor Web page on NRC's public Web site by going to <http://www.nrc.gov> and then clicking on New Reactors under the Nuclear Reactors tab. You will then see a link to vendor Web page on that page.

Q. What kind of questions will I see on the FAQ Web page?

A. The FAQ section on the vendor Web page lists all the questions and answers that were asked at NRC conferences and workshops. It also lists questions and answers about relevant NRC regulations and inspections pertaining to vendors.

Q. How do vendors sign up for the newsletter?

A. The staff created an online link for vendors to sign up for the newsletter via the public Web site or vendors can provide their business cards at one of the NRC's conferences or workshops.

Q. Will there be any additional burden on the industry?

A. No. The NRC's goal is to provide additional tools for the industry to use to be more cognizant of current NRC regulations. Vendors will be able to use the agency's public Web page more efficiently to learn about current events and upcoming conferences and NRC workshops.

Q. Will the NRC consider other options for outreach and communications that may be proposed by the industry and the public?

A. The NRC constantly looks for ways to improve its communications with the public and will consider other options that will be beneficial.

Q. *How does the NRC plan to improve tracking and trending?*

A. The NRC plans to track and trend the questions received at its conferences and through its FAQs page to gauge the most common issues and concerns that vendors have. The vendor inspection staff will use this information to concentrate its efforts in identifying those issues that are hot topics. The vendor inspection staff plans to track and trend the vendors that attend NRC conferences and workshops. This will help the agency track industry interest in the topics being presented and inform its planning for future activities.

APPENDIX D

STRATEGY FOR COORDINATING VENDOR INSPECTION

PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to establish and communicate the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC's) strategy for coordinating resources between the Office of New Reactors (NRO) and NRC's Region II staff to support the inspections, testing, analyses, and acceptance criteria (ITAAC) - related inspections of vendors manufacturing safety-related components and modular assemblies for new reactor construction. Application of the strategy will result in the effective and efficient coordination of the agency's inspection resources allocated in the ITAAC oversight process that will enable the NRC to facilitate the ITAAC closure process.

BACKGROUND

The NRC staff conducts inspections to review the licensee's construction activities as the licensee completes the applicable ITAACs. Guidance for these inspections is contained in IMC 2503, "Construction Inspection Program: Inspections of Inspections, Tests, Analyses and Acceptance Criteria (ITAAC) Related Work." The Region II staff is primarily responsible for implementing the ITAAC inspection program.

The NRC staff also conducts routine and reactive inspections to examine whether vendors of safety-related components or services have complied with the requirements of Appendix B and 10 CFR Part 21 as required under vendor procurement contracts with applicants or licensees. Guidance for these inspections is contained in IMC 2507, "Construction Inspection Program: Vendor Inspections." The NRO vendor inspection staff is responsible for implementing the vendor inspection program.

Currently, IMC 2507 contains general guidance for conducting NRC inspections of vendors supplying safety-related components and modular assemblies. The strategy contained in this document expands upon the guidance in IMC 2507 and should help ensure the most efficient and effective coordination of NRC's resources.

VENDOR INSPECTION COORDINATION STRATEGY

The following steps will be implemented to ensure that vendor inspections associated with new reactor construction are properly coordinated with appropriate Region II staff:

- a. The NRO vendor inspection staff consistently updates its vendor inspection schedule based on the information collected through communications with new reactor licensees and their engineering and procurement contractors; as well as the review of a list of recommended inspections of ITAAC-related safety-related components including modular assemblies fabricated at vendor sites provided by Region II staff.
- b. When a vendor's scope of supply includes ITAAC-related items, the NRO vendor inspection staff will coordinate the inspection plan and request inspection support from Region II staff.

- c. The NRO vendor inspection schedule is currently published on the NRO's vendor inspection SharePoint site.
- d. Weekly Vendor Inspection Schedule calls are conducted between the NRO vendor inspection and Region II inspection branch chiefs to discuss vendor inspections and resources for construction activities associated with Vogtle Electric Generating Plant Units 3 and 4 and Virgil C. Summer Nuclear Station Units 2 and 3.

Topics of discussion during these meetings include but are not limited to:

1. Update on any changes to the vendor inspection schedule, and coordination of Region II inspection resources.
 2. Update on confirmed Region II construction inspection resources.
 3. Discussion on any vendor issues identified on-site by the NRC resident inspectors Region II construction inspectors, or generic issues identified by the vendor inspection staff.
 4. Discussion on any identified ITAAC-related vendor inspection activities.
 5. Review of action items.
- e. ITAAC-related inspections at facilities that are not controlled by the licensee shall be planned in coordination with the vendor inspection staff to ensure that the inspection is properly staffed and includes at least one qualified vendor inspector. These inspections will be licensee inspections, will be led by Region II, and will be conducted in accordance with IMC 2503. Enforcement actions will be taken against the specific licensee as applicable.
 - f. Sample-based ITAAC inspection

While the scope of the NRC's inspection program is comprehensive, 100% inspection is neither necessary nor efficient when evaluating a vendor's performance. For this reason, NRC historically has relied on a sample-based inspection program.

For the AP1000 design, between 10-15% of vendor-related ITAACs will likely be verified at the vendor facilities. The vendor inspection and Region II staff will interact with licensees and their agent(s) as applicable to determine which type test or qualification ITAAC will be inspected based upon testing at a vendor location. The vendor inspection staff in coordination with Region II will inspect a representative sample of these testing activities at a broad range of test vendor locations to verify programmatic quality controls associated with key test or qualification attributes are adequately implemented, the methodology used is sound, and that the same methodology is implemented for other ITAAC-related SSCs. The results of the vendor inspection, as described in the inspection report will support future closure verification of ITAAC.

NEXT STEP

For each subsequent Reactor Design Center, a similar evaluation process will be conducted if modular construction is utilized.

APPENDIX E

VENDOR INSPECTION PROGRAM PERFORMANCE METRICS

VIP-O-1A Accomplish DCIP's [the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's Office of New Reactors Division of Construction Inspection and Operational Programs] Established Number of Inspections per Fiscal Year

Definition: Accomplish DCIP's established number of inspections per fiscal year to capture a reasonable perspective of industry performance (per NUREG-1100).

Criteria: Expect DCIP to perform the required number of inspections established at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Goals: Effective, Open

VIP-O-1B Completion of Annual Assessment of the Number of NOV's [Notices of violations] and NON's [Notices of Nonconformance]

Definition: Perform an annual assessment of NONs and NOV's to identify generic industry issues and take corrective actions as necessary. Corrective actions may include discussions at the vendor workshop, issuance of generic communications, and other activities.

Criteria: Expect industry attendance at vendor workshops and industry outreach meetings and through generic communications.

Goals: Objective, Open, Risk-Informed

VIP-O-2A Inspection Reports Are Relevant, Useful, and Written in Plain Language

Definition: Survey external and internal stakeholders to determine whether the information contained in inspection reports is relevant, useful, and written in plain language.

The NRC's quality assurance public Website provides a link to the Vendor Inspection Report Survey Form. Interested stakeholders can fill the survey and submit it electronically.

Criteria: Expect stable or increasingly positive perception over time.

Goals: Effective, Open, Understandable

VIP-O-2B Notification of Inspection

Definition: Obtain data on the total number of inspections that were notified to the vendor within the timeliness goals stipulated in Section 10 of this plan.

Criteria: Expect 90 percent of inspections to be announced to the vendor within the Vendor Inspection Program (VIP) timeliness goals.

Goals: Effective, Open, Predictable

VIP-O-2C Inspection Plans are Timely

Definition: Obtain data on the total number of inspection plans issued within the timeliness goals stipulated in Section 10 of this plan.

Criteria: Expect 90 percent of inspection plans to be issued within the Vendor Inspection Program (VIP) timeliness goals.

Goals: Effective, Open, Predictable

VIP-O-2D Inspection Reports are Timely

Definition: Obtain data on the total number of announcement inspection reports issued within the timeliness goals stipulated in Section 10 of this plan and Inspection Manual Chapter 0617, "Vendor and Quality Assurance Implementation Inspection Reports," dated October 3, 2013.

Criteria: Expect 90 percent of inspection reports to be issued within the Vendor Inspection Program (VIP) timeliness goals.

Goals: Effective, Open, Predictable

VIP-O-2E Acknowledgment Letters Are Timely

Definition: Obtain data on the total number of acknowledgement letters issued within the timeliness goals stipulated in Section 10 of this plan.

Criteria: Expect 90 percent of acknowledgement letters to be issued within the Vendor Inspection Program (VIP) timeliness goals.

Goals: Effective, Open, Predictable

VIP-O-2F Inspection Results Accepted by Stakeholders

Definition: Track the total number of NOV and NONs contested by vendors.

Criteria: Retract less than 10 percent of NOV and NONs because they are successfully contested by the stakeholders.

Goals: Effective, Objective, Open, Predictable

VIP-O-3 Allegation Support

Definition: Achieve the timely submittal of allegation response documents.

Criteria: Conduct all support within the Allegation program timeliness goals. Support includes, but is not limited to, providing input for Allegation Review Board materials, attending Allegation Review Boards, providing input to Requests for Information, participating in phone calls with the Concerned Individual(s), providing input for closure and response after closure letters, etc.

Goals: Effective, Objective, Risk-Informed

VIP-O-4A Assessment of Trainee Qualifications

Definition: Branch Chiefs assess inspectors in training for progress in achieving qualifications at least quarterly.

Criteria: Expect 90 percent of trainees to qualify in 2 years.

Goals: Effective, Predictable, Understandable

VIP-O-4B Assessment of Inspector Proficiency

Definition: Maintain proficiency for all qualified inspectors.

Criteria: Maintain annual proficiency for all qualified inspectors in accordance with the guidance set forth by the VIP for refresher and continuing training.

Goals: Effective, Predictable, Understandable

APPENDIX F

VENDOR INSPECTION REPORT FEEDBACK FORM

This voluntary survey contains information collections that are covered by the Office of Management and Budget clearance number 3150-0217, which expires 1/31/2017. The information provided will be used by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission to identify areas where improvements can be made in the writing of vendor inspection reports. The burden to the public for these information collections is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for completing and submitting the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of these information collections, including suggestions for reducing the burden, to the Information Services Branch (T-5 F53), U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001, or by email to INFOCOLLECTS.RESOURCE@NRC.GOV; and to the Desk Officer, Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs, NEOB-10202, (3150-0197) Office of Management and Budget, Washington, DC 20503.

Inspection Report Number: _____ Date: _____

1. Did the inspection report clearly explain the violation or nonconformance?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No
- ☐ N/A

Comments:

2. Was/Were the Notice of Nonconformance or Notice of Violation or both based on supported facts rather than subjective judgment?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No
- ☐ N/A

Comments:

3. Were the technical issues described in a manner that was clearly understood?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No
- ☐ N/A

Comments:

4. Was the inspection report publicly available within the agreed upon schedule?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No
- ☐

Comments:

5. Was the information presented in the inspection report relevant and useful?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No

Comments:

6. Was the inspection report written in a clear and concise manner?

- ☐ Yes
- ☐ No

Comments:

7. Please provide any comments or recommendations about the inspection report in the space below.

Public Protection Notification

The NRC may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a request for information or an information collection requirement unless the requesting document displays a currently valid OMB control number.